



SDHA

Saskatchewan Dental
Hygienists' Association

**Saskatchewan Dental Hygienists' Association
ADMINISTRATIVE BYLAWS**

Amended:

June 2014

February 2016

February 2017

November 2018

March 2020

July 2020

March 2021

June 2022

November 2022

May 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PREAMBLE	5
Incorporation	
Registered Office	
ARTICLE I: INTERPRETATION	5
1.1 Legislation	
1.2 Definitions	
1.3 Headings	
ARTICLE II: MEMBERSHIP	6
2.1 Obligations of Membership	
2.2 Rights of Membership	
ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP and RELATED FEES	6
3.1 Membership Year	
3.2 Membership Fees	
3.3 Pro-rating	
ARTICLE IV: GENERAL MEETINGS OF MEMBERS	7
4.1 Minutes of General Meetings of Members	
<u>ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (AGM)</u>	7
4.2 Time and Place	
4.3 Business	
4.4 Notice	
4.5 Slate of Directors	
4.6 Quorum	
4.7 Eligibility to Participate	
4.8 Chair	
4.9 Voting	
4.10 Methods of Voting	
4.11 Scrutineers	
4.12 Tie Vote	
4.13 Process for Resolutions	
4.14 Disposition of Resolutions	
<u>SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS</u>	8
4.15 Time and Place	
4.16 Notice	
4.17 Business	
4.18 Quorum	
4.19 Eligibility to Participate	
4.20 Chair	
4.21 Voting	
4.22 Methods of Voting	
4.23 Scrutineers	
4.24 Tie Vote	
4.25 Process for Resolutions	
4.26 Disposition of Resolutions	

ARTICLE V: COUNCIL 9

5.1 Composition

5.2 Nominations

5.3 Criteria for Elected Directors

5.4 Timing of Elections

5.5 Vacation of Office

5.6 Election of Officers

5.7 Eligibility

5.8 Employees

5.9 Terms of Office

5.10 Staggered Terms

5.11 Exceptions to Term Limits

5.12 Appointed Directors

5.13 Vacancies

5.14 Duties and Responsibilities

5.15 Attendance

5.16 Self-Removal

5.17 Removal by Council

5.18 Return of Property

OFFICERS..... 12

5.19 Officers

5.20 Officer Terms

5.21 President

5.22 Vice-President

5.23 Registrar as Officer

COUNCIL MEETINGS 12

5.24 Council Meetings

5.25 Council Meeting Notice

5.26 Participation by Telephone or Other Communication Facilities

5.27 Motions made by E-mail

5.28 Quorum

5.29 Voting Methods

5.30 Voting Requirements

5.31 In Camera

5.32 Governance Principles

ARTICLE VI: COMMITTEES..... 13

6.1 Requirements

ARTICLE VII: CONFLICT OF INTEREST13

7.1 Requirements

7.2 Situations

7.3 Personal Interest

7.4 Removal

7.5 Disclosure and Actions

ARTICLE VIII: ADMINISTRATION OF THE ASSOCIATION 14

8.1 Fiscal Year

8.2 Procedures at Meetings

8.3 Corporate Seal

8.4 Agents and Employees

8.5 Investments

8.6 Banking and Financial Affairs

8.7 Execution of Instruments

- 8.8 Contracts
- 8.9 Auditor

ARTICLE IX: FOR THE PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS.....15

ARTICLE X: AMENDMENT OF THE BYLAWS 15

10.1 Process

10.2 Approval

ARTICLE XI: DISTRIBUTION OF INFORMATION..... 16

APPENDICES:

A. Current Fee Schedule

Being a general Bylaw relating to the regulation of the business and affairs of the Saskatchewan Dental Hygienists' Association (SDHA) hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation" or "Association", it is hereby enacted as Administrative Bylaw #2 of the Corporation as follows:

PREAMBLE

Incorporation

The Saskatchewan Dental Hygienists' Association is an entity established under *The Dental Disciplines Act*, herein referred to as the '*Act*', being Chapter D-4.1 of The Statutes of Saskatchewan, 1997 and its subsequent amendments.

The Saskatchewan Dental Hygienists' Association is established as a Corporation continued in Section #3(5) of the *Act*, pursuant to *The Non-profit Corporations Act, 1995* and its subsequent amendments.

Registered Office

Unless changed by special resolution, the registered office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Saskatoon, in the Province of Saskatchewan. The Corporation may establish such other offices and agencies in the Province of Saskatchewan as the Directors may decide are necessary from time to time.

ARTICLE I: INTERPRETATION

1.1 Legislation

When interpreting these bylaws, words and expressions have the same meaning as in *The Dental Disciplines Act*, unless the context otherwise requires.

1.2 Definitions

In these bylaws:

- a) Singular words include the plural and apply to all genders
- b) "Active members" means members who hold current full, conditional or non-practising membership
- c) "council" means the governing body of the SDHA;
- d) "Registrar" or "Chief Executive Officer (CEO)" means the staff person or management organization appointed by and directly accountable to the council and to whom the council may delegate full authority to manage the affairs of the Corporation;
- e) "director" or "councilor" or "council member" means a member of the council, the governing body of the SDHA;
- f) "ex-officio" means a position without a vote;
- g) "in camera" means that a portion of the council or committee meeting is held in private, without observers, to deal with matters of a confidential nature or a personal nature concerning an individual;
- h) "officer" means the individuals elected by council to the positions of President and Vice-President;
- i) "proxy" means the authority provided by a member to another eligible voting member to act on their behalf at a meeting of the members of the association;

- j) "quorum" means the number of individuals needed to be present to convene a meeting;
- k) "scrutineers" mean the individuals appointed at a member meeting to determine the results of a vote;
- l) "special resolution" means a resolution supported by a 3/4 (three quarters) majority vote.
- m) "treasurer" means a person appointed to administer or manage the financial assets and liabilities of the organization.

1.3 Headings

The division of the bylaws into sections and paragraphs and the insertion of headings and index are for convenience and reference only and do not affect the interpretation of the bylaws.

ARTICLE II: MEMBERSHIP

2.1 Obligations of Membership

All members must:

- a) Notify the Registrar, in writing sent via regular post, electronic mail of change in name, mailing address, place of employment or membership status within thirty days of the changes.
- b) Answer all correspondence from the Association to which a reply is required within 30 days from the date of the correspondence unless another date is specified. When reminder correspondence is sent to a member from the Association, and the member fails to respond in writing within 15 days from the date stipulated in the reminder correspondence, the member may be referred to the Registrar, who may then make a referral to the Professional Conduct committee under Article 21 of the *Act*. In the event that reminder correspondence is sent in regards to non-renewal or non-payment of fees, this failure to respond within the 15 days will result in immediate cancellation of the person's registration.

2.2 Rights of Membership

Members who have been approved for full registration and who hold a full, conditional or non-practicing license have the following rights and privileges, to:

- a) engage in the practice of dental hygiene, subject to any restrictions or conditions placed on the member;
- b) receive official SDHA publications;
- c) vote at annual and special general membership meetings;
- d) stand for election or appointment to any position within the Association, subject to the *Act* and these bylaws; and to
- e) attend and participate in meetings of the Association in accordance with the *Act*, bylaws and council policies.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP and RELATED FEES

3.1 Membership Year

The membership year of the Association will commence on the 1st day of November and terminate on the 31st day of the following October. The addition of an annual renewal due date, no earlier than 8 weeks prior to the termination of the membership year, may be established to allow for the timely review and processing of renewal applications.

3.2 Membership Fees

Fees will be established by the council for:

- a) Full and Restricted Registrations
- b) Licence fees for full, conditional and non-practicing licenses and for temporary permits to practice.

Any fee increment will be presented and discussed at a meeting of the members of the Association in a timely manner. The current fee schedule is attached in Appendix A.

3.3 Pro-rating

Membership fees will not be pro-rated except for new graduates.

ARTICLE IV: GENERAL MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

4.1 Minutes of General Meetings of Members

Minutes shall be taken at annual and special general meetings and be made available to the membership.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (AGM)

4.2 Time and Place

The Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Corporation shall be held at such place within Saskatchewan, and on such date in each year as the council may determine, provided that such meeting is held no later than seven (7) months after the Corporation's fiscal year end. In the event of extreme, unforeseen societal circumstance e.g. global pandemic, the Council will postpone until circumstances are rectified to allow normal business operations to resume. The AGM of the membership may be scheduled in conjunction with other events that would likely attract members in order to achieve efficiencies and maximize member participation in the AGM.

4.3 Business

The council will prescribe the agenda for the meeting and it must include provisions for:

- a) approval of the agenda
- b) approval of the minutes of the previous annual general meeting
- c) report of the President
- d) report, if any, of legislated committees
- e) election of council
- f) changes, if any, to Regulatory and/or Administrative bylaws
- g) audited financial statements or management review findings
- h) resolutions by any member, and
- i) any other business which the council may so decide.

4.4 Notice

Notice of time and place of the AGM shall be given to the members not less than twenty-one (21) and not more than fifty (50) days before the AGM. No public notice or advertisement of the AGM shall be required. Any error or omission in giving notice of a meeting will not invalidate the meeting or anything done at the meeting. Members may waive the notice requirements and may approve and confirm anything done at a meeting held without notice.

4.5 Slate of Directors

The council's proposed slate of Directors will be available to the membership one week in advance of the AGM.

4.6 Quorum

A quorum of the members of the Corporation at the AGM shall consist of five percent (5%) of the members who are eligible to vote and are present. No business shall be transacted at any Annual General Meeting unless the requisite quorum is present at the commencement of the meeting. Should the number of members present at an annual general meeting fall below five

percent after the meeting has been called to order, the valid transaction of business can still continue.

4.7 Eligibility to Participate

Members will be considered to be present if participating in person or by means of such telephone or other communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other.

4.8 Chair

The President of the council shall act as chair of the meeting. The President may delegate the chair of the annual general meeting to another officer or director of the council.

4.9 Voting

Every question shall, unless otherwise required by the *Act* or the bylaws, be determined by the majority of the votes cast on the question.

4.10 Methods of Voting

The vote may be taken by ballot or by a show of voting cards at the discretion of the President. No proxy voting will be permitted.

4.11 Scrutineers

The President of the meeting must appoint from amongst those assembled two scrutineers who will tabulate the vote for and against in the show of voting cards or, in the event of a ballot vote, will distribute, collect and count the ballots and report the results to the President.

4.12 Tie Vote

The President shall ordinarily have no vote. In the event of a tie vote, either by a count of voting cards or ballot vote, the President of the meeting will cast the deciding vote or request a second vote at her discretion.

4.13 Process for Resolutions

Resolutions put forward by members at an annual general meeting must be in writing, signed by the mover and seconder and received by the President no fewer than 5 business days prior to the commencement of the meeting. Either the mover or the seconder must be present in person or by distance conferencing at the meeting for the resolution to be considered.

4.14 Disposition of Resolutions

Resolutions adopted at the meeting shall be considered by the council, but are not binding on the council. The council shall report on the disposition of any such resolution at the next annual general meeting.

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

4.15 Time and Place

Subject to the provisions of the *Act* and the Regulatory Bylaws, Special General Meetings of the members may be convened to bring business before the membership of the Association at any time and place within Saskatchewan by the council on its own motion or on the written requisition of at least ten percent (10%) of the members who are eligible to vote.

4.16 Notice

Written notice of the date, time and place of each Special General Meeting of members shall be given not less than twenty-one (21) days and not more than fifty (50) before any Special General Meeting to each director, to the external auditor or management review firm and to each member who at the close of business on the record date for notice is entered in the membership register. No public notice or advertisement of any Special General Meeting of members shall be required.

4.17 Business

The notice shall state the nature of the business to be considered at the Special General Meeting in sufficient detail to permit the member to form a reasoned judgment thereon and the text of any special resolution to be submitted to the meeting. The business to be transacted at a Special General Meeting of the association will be limited to that specified in the notice.

4.18 Quorum

A quorum for the transaction of business at Special General Meetings of the members shall consist of not less than twenty percent (20%) of the members who are eligible to vote and are present at the meeting. No business shall be transacted at any Special General Meeting unless the requisite quorum is present at the commencement of the meeting. Should the number of members present at a Special General Meeting fall below twenty percent after the meeting has been called to order, the valid transaction of business can still continue.

4.19 Eligibility to Participate

At any Special General Meeting, members will be considered to be present if participating in person or by means of such telephone or other communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other.

4.20 Chair

The President of the council shall act as chair of a Special General Meeting. The President may delegate the chair of the Special General Meeting to another officer or director of the council.

4.21 Voting

Every question shall, unless otherwise required by the *Act* or the bylaws, be determined by the majority of the votes cast on the question.

4.22 Methods of Voting

The vote may be taken by ballot or by a show of voting cards at the discretion of the President.

4.23 Scrutineers

The President of the meeting must appoint from amongst those assembled two scrutineers who will tabulate the vote for and against in the show of voting cards or, in the event of a ballot vote, will distribute, collect and count the ballots and report the results to the President.

4.24 Tie Vote

The President shall ordinarily have no vote. In the event of a tie vote, either by a count of voting cards or ballot vote, the President of the meeting will cast the deciding vote or request a second vote at her discretion.

4.25 Process for Resolutions

Resolutions put forward by members at a Special General Meeting must be in writing, signed by the mover and seconder and received by the President no fewer than 5 business days prior to the commencement of the meeting. Either the mover or the seconder must be present in person or by distance conferencing at the meeting for the resolution to be considered.

4.26 Disposition of Resolutions

Resolutions adopted at the meeting shall be considered by the council, but are not binding on the council. The council shall report on the disposition of any such resolution at the next annual general meeting.

ARTICLE V: COUNCIL

5.1 Composition

The council will consist of a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of ten (10) directors. Up to seven (7) directors will be elected from the eligible membership and up to three (3) directors known as 'public representatives' will be appointed by the Minister in accordance with the *Act*.

5.2 Nominations

The council will establish rules regarding nomination of candidates for election to the council. Nominations from the floor at the AGM shall be permitted at the discretion of Council. From council's own recruitment activity, the council shall prepare a proposed slate of Directors and shall make it available to the membership not less than one (1) week prior to the AGM.

5.3 Criteria for Elected Directors

The council will make every effort to propose directors so as to:

- a) provide geographic representation from dental hygienists who have a genuine interest in the mandate of the Corporation;
- b) ensure the continuance of staggered terms of office as directors; and to
- c) ensure governance capacity through the selection and development of leadership skills and abilities.

5.4 Timing of Elections

Election of the council will be held at the AGM of the Association. Any member eligible to vote and who follows the appropriate procedures outlined by the council may participate in the election of directors.

5.5 Vacation of Office

Retiring director(s) shall retain office until the dissolution and adjournment of the AGM wherein their successor was elected. If a director is removed from office, they shall vacate the office upon the passing of such a resolution.

5.6 Election of Officers

Council Officers of President and Vice-President shall be elected by the council immediately following the AGM.

5.7 Eligibility

Registered and actively licenced members in good standing, not subject to any discipline finding and have voting rights are eligible to serve as directors. Members currently or previously serving as a director, officer or employee of the national association shall not be eligible for council for at least one (1) year after their term or employment has ended.

5.8 Employees

Current employees of the Association, except for the Registrar/Chief Executive Officer shall not be eligible to serve as directors on the council or on council committees. Any past employee of the Association shall not be eligible for council membership for at least three (3) years after employment has ended.

5.9 Terms of office

Elected members of the council will hold office for a term of three years. They are eligible for re-appointment by the membership to a second full consecutive term or a maximum of 6 consecutive years. Council members shall then stand down from the council for one year after which they may be eligible for re-election to the council.

5.10 Staggered Terms

The council will endeavor to ensure staggered terms for council members.

5.11 Exceptions to Term Limits

Notwithstanding the above restrictions, the council may from time to time determine that exceptional circumstances warrant the nomination of a director for election to serve a third (3rd) consecutive term for a total of 9 years.

5.12 Appointed Directors

Each public director will be appointed to council by the Minister for a three (3) year term, and may thereafter be reappointed for one (1) additional full term. Public directors may serve a maximum of 6 consecutive years or until replaced by the Minister.

5.13 Vacancies

a) ELECTED DIRECTORS

- i. An elected council member may resign by sending their resignation in writing to the President or other council officer and the resignation is effective when accepted by the council.
- ii. Where a vacancy on the council involving an **elected member falls below five** occurs during the year, the council will appoint, by special resolution of the remaining council members, an eligible member of the Association to fill the vacancy on the council for the balance of the term of the office vacated.
- iii. When vacancies of elected members on the council are 50% of these members, the remaining members must call a Special General Meeting to have an election to fill the vacancies.

b) APPOINTED DIRECTORS

- i. A public representative on council may resign by sending their resignation in writing to the Minister and the resignation is effective when accepted by the Minister.
- ii. When a position held by a public representative on the council becomes vacant during any given year, the council must request that the Minister appoint a replacement for the balance of the term.

5.14 Duties and Responsibilities

Directors are responsible for governance that is owner accountable, lawful and ethical. Governance practices must include the exercise of effective stewardship as well as the appropriate delegation of responsibility, leadership and control of the Association.

Every council member shall:

- a) act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Association;
- b) exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances;
- c) not act in a conflict of interest;
- d) not abuse their position; and
- e) follow the *Act*, regulations, bylaws and the policies/rules of the Association.

5.15 Attendance

Directors must attend a minimum of three quarters of the regularly scheduled council meetings during each term. Unless mitigating circumstances prevail, failure to meet this attendance requirement will be deemed to be a resignation. A council member may be considered for reinstatement by the council at their request, but only once per term.

5.16 Self-Removal

A council member removes themselves from office by failing to comply with the attendance requirements shown 5.15. Attendance above.

5.17 Removal by Council

The council may by special resolution remove a director from the council:

- a) for issues such as non-compliance with the *Act*, bylaws or policies of the Association. In those cases, the director in question shall not vote and the council must have eighty percent (80%) of the remaining directors present at the meeting for the motion to be carried.
- b) for just cause;
- c) if the director's membership has been allowed to lapse, been suspended or revoked;
- d) if the director ceases to be qualified due to judicial or medical determination of mental incapacity, conviction of an indictable offence, bankruptcy or death;
- e) if the director is insolvent or made an assignment in bankruptcy.

5.18 Return of Property

When a director dies, resigns, retires, or is removed, any property of the Association in her possession is to be returned to the council.

OFFICERS

5.19 Officers

The council must select from among the directors two (2) Officers: a President and Vice-President. Public directors are eligible for Officer positions. Election of these two positions will be made at the first council meeting following the AGM. The council may determine other Officer positions at its discretion from time to time.

5.20 Officer Terms

Officers of the council will hold office for a term of one year. They are eligible for re-appointment by the council to three consecutive one-year terms. Officers shall then stand down from that office for one year after which they may be eligible for reelection to the position.

5.21 President

The President is responsible to ensure the integrity of the council's governance and will preside at meetings of the council.

5.22 Vice-President

The Vice-President is responsible for the integrity of the council's documents and planning processes, assisting the President to ensure the integrity of the council's governance. When reasonable, the Vice-President will preside at meetings of the council in the event of the President's absence with full accountability of that office.

5.23 Registrar as Officer

The Registrar is an officer of the corporation and an ex-officio, non-voting member at all general, council and council committee meetings. The Registrar will perform the functions of a treasurer and must perform the functions as set out in the *Act* and as specified by the council in accordance with its policies.

COUNCIL MEETINGS

5.24 Council Meetings

The council shall hold no fewer than three (3) regular meetings per year in addition to the AGM. Council meetings may be held inside or outside of Saskatchewan as the Directors from time to time determine. Additional meetings and/or special council meetings may be held at any given time and place that a quorum of the directors choose. Special council meetings may be called by any three directors or by any Officer of council.

5.25 Council Meeting Notice

Each director is to be given 7 days written notice of the meeting by the President, but formal notice is unnecessary if all the Directors are present at a meeting, or waive the written notice required and those who will be absent from the meeting consent to the meeting.

5.26 Participation by Telephone or Other Communication Facilities

Regular or Special meetings of the council or any of its committees may be held by telephone or other methods of electronic voice, including visual and voice transmission provided that each Director participating by such method can be identified when speaking and all participants are able to hear each other at the same time. For purposes of such a telephone or other electronic voice means meeting, all Directors who are connected by telephone or other electronic voice means will count toward a quorum and may participate and vote. The actions taken by such a telephone or other electronic voice means at which quorum is present will be deemed to be the actions of the council or council committee.

5.27 Motions made by E-mail

Electronic means such as e-mail may be used for discussions on council business and to poll Directors for votes on motions but the results of such a poll on said motions must be recorded and ratified in the minutes of the next regularly scheduled council meeting.

5.28 Quorum

A majority of the council constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business. Quorum is established at the beginning of the meeting. Council members will be considered to be present at the council meeting if participating in person or via teleconference provided that all members can be heard.

5.29 Voting Methods

Voting at any council meeting may be by consensus, voice vote, show of hands or poll at the discretion of the council. In the event of a tie, the President, who shall ordinarily have no vote, will be entitled to vote.

5.30 Voting Requirements

Questions arising at any meeting of directors shall be decided by a majority of votes of those present and in person with the exception of a vote to terminate the Registrar which shall require 80% votes in agreement among the entire complement of directors.

5.31 In Camera

As deemed necessary by the council, the council may elect to go *in camera* for a portion of their meeting, to deliberate regarding matters of a confidential nature or of a personal nature.

5.32 Governance Principles

The council shall use best practice principles in good governance that may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE VI: COMMITTEES

6.1 Requirements

The council must establish such committees as set out in the *Act* and others as it deems necessary to assist the council in the performance of its duties under the *Act*.

ARTICLE VII: CONFLICT OF INTEREST

7.1 Requirements

Directors, council committee members and members must ensure that they avoid any situation that may give rise to a conflict of interest or to an appearance of conflict of interest.

7.2 Situations

A conflict of interest is deemed to exist in any situation where a member, council member or council committee member has personal interests in a matter that may be reasonably seen to influence their professional advice and conduct:

- a) in the case of a member, in relation to a client, or
- b) in the case of a council member or officer, in relation to the Association or its members.

7.3 Personal Interest

For the purposes of 7.2, "personal interests" includes but is not limited to financial, professional, family and other personal relationships and includes those situations in which a family member or associate of the member has a significant interest in a matter.

7.4 Removal

If a member discovers they are in a conflict of interest situation, they must take immediate steps to remove the conflict of interest.

7.5 Disclosure and Actions

If a council member or officer discovers they are in a conflict of interest situation, they must:

- a) disclose the conflict of interest to the council and the Registrar,
- b) not vote or exercise their duties in regard to the area of conflict of interest, and
- c) take immediate steps to remove the conflict of interest.

ARTICLE VIII: ADMINISTRATION OF THE ASSOCIATION

8.1 Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be from November 1 to October 31. This date may be changed as the council may from time to time determine by Special resolution.

8.2 Procedures at Meetings

The rules contained in the current edition of Roberts Rules of Order, or any other rules of order adopted by the council will govern the Association in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the *Act* or these bylaws, or any special rules of order the Association may adopt.

8.3 Corporate Seal

The corporate seal of the Association will remain in the head office of the Association. It may, when required, be affixed to contracts, documents or instruments in writing signed by any Officer or person or persons appointed as signing authorities by the council.

8.4 Agents and Employees

The council may appoint or employ such agents, consultants, specialists, or employees as necessary to assist the council in the performance of its duties under the *Act* and must establish duties and remuneration for these persons as necessary.

8.5 Investments

The Association may invest surplus revenues that may accrue and such investment must be registered in the name of the Association.

8.6 Banking and Financial Affairs

The banking business of the Corporation, or any part thereof, shall be transacted with such bank, trust company or other firm or corporation carrying on a banking business as the council may designate, appoint or authorize from time to time by resolution and all such banking business, or any part thereof, shall be transacted on behalf of the Corporation by such one or more officers and/or other persons as the council may designate, direct or authorize from time to time by resolution and to the extent therein provided including, but without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the operation of the accounts of the Corporation; the making, signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, negotiating, lodging, depositing or transferring of any cheques, promissory notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and orders for payment of money; the giving of receipts for and orders relating to any property of the Corporation; the execution of any agreement relating to any such banking business and defining the rights to any such banking business and defining the rights and powers of the parties thereto; and the authorizing of any officer of such bank to do any act or thing on behalf of the Corporation to facilitate such banking business.

8.7 Execution of Instruments

The signing authorities of the Association may be those individuals designated by council from time to time by special resolution. These individuals may be any officer or officers or any other person or persons on behalf of the Corporation either to sign contracts, documents or instruments in writing generally or to sign specific contracts, documents or instruments in writing. The term "contract, documents or instruments in writing" as used in this bylaw shall include deeds, mortgages, hypothec, charges, conveyances, transfers and assignments of property, real or personal, immovable or movable, agreements, releases, receipts and discharges for the payment of money or other obligations, conveyances, transfers and assignments of shares, share warrants, bonds, debentures or other securities and all other paper writing.

8.8 Contracts

Contracts, documents and instruments in writing so signed by two of the signing authorities are binding on the Association.

8.9 Auditor

Council shall appoint an auditor every 5 years. In intervening years the Council shall engage a qualified person or firm to conduct a Management Review.

ARTICLE IX: FOR THE PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No Director or Officer for the time being of the Corporation shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other Director or Officer or employee or for joining in any receipt or act of conformity or for any loss damage or expense happening to the Corporation through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired by the Corporation or for or on behalf of the Corporation for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which monies of or belonging to the Corporation shall be placed out or invested or for any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy or insolvency or tortuous act of any person, firm or the Corporation with whom or which any monies, securities or effects of the Corporation shall be lodged or deposited or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatsoever which may happen in the execution of the duties of his or her respective office or trust or in relation thereto unless it shall happen by or through that person's own wrongful and willful act or through that person's own wrongful or willful neglect or default.

ARTICLE X: AMENDMENT OF THE BYLAWS

10.1 Process

These bylaws may be repealed or amended at a council meeting by a special resolution, provided that previous notice of the amendment has been sent with written notice of the meeting as per section 14 of the *Act*.

10.2 Approval

Any proposed bylaw changes must be approved by a majority of council members at a council meeting prior to presentation to the membership.

ARTICLE XI: DISTRIBUTION OF INFORMATION

The Association may distribute information and notices to members through a variety of formats including mail, electronically through email, or by posting such items on the Association’s website.

BYLAWS AMENDED THIS 08 day of May. WITNESS the corporate seal of the Corporation.

SIGNATURES:


Stacie Beadle (May 8, 2023 18:24 MDT)

Signature (President)


Lisa Pollock (May 13, 2023 10:17 MDT)

Signature (Vice-President)



Appendix A- Fee Schedule

Effective May 1, 2023

Description		Fee
Application	A non-refundable application fee must accompany an application form to be considered. This fee applies to applicants of all registration/ licence categories and includes access to the Jurisprudence Education Module Exam.	\$100.00
Registration	This once in a lifetime fee is applied to any category of registration and remains valid until removed by Council or until a period of six (6) months has passed since the registrant has held a licence.	\$150.00
Annual Licences	An Annual Licence is valid from November 1 st – October 31 st of each year, with an automatic expiry at midnight of October 31 st . No refunds or partial year fees are permitted. Pro-ration: applies to applicants that have not registered/licensed in another jurisdiction and are making application for the first time (new graduates). Application must be made in the same calendar year of graduation to be eligible for pro-ration (excludes November/December).	
Full Licence	Provided to an individual that has met all the requirements and has provided satisfactory evidence of completion of an approved education program in the administration of local anesthesia (LA).	\$600 <i>New Grad \$330</i>
Conditional Licence	Provided to an individual that has provided all the requirements with the exception of local anesthesia. A conditional licence holder must complete an approved education program in administering local anesthesia within two years of this licence being granted. A conditional licence may be changed to full licence within the licensing year at no cost.	\$600 <i>New Grad \$330</i>
Non-practising Licence	Provided to an individual that has met all the requirements but is not practising dental hygiene in the current licensing year. A non-practising licence may be granted for a total of no more than three consecutive licensing years. A non-practising licence fee may be credited towards a full licence within the same licensing year.	\$330 <i>Upgrade to Full \$270</i>
Temporary Permit	Provided to an individual that has met all the requirements to register and seeks a permit for the purpose of participating in or conducting a clinical course, study club, or research program. Valid for a period of 2 months.	\$330
Licensure Renewal	Application for licensure renewal may be granted to applicants who have submitted the appropriate form, demonstrated compliance with the Continuing Competency Program, provided satisfactory evidence of Professional Liability Insurance, and are of good character/fitness to practice. Licensure renewal fees vary on the category of licensure described above.	
Late Renewal	A late fee is applied to any application for licensure renewal submitted between October 20th- October 31st .	\$100
Reinstatement	This fee applies to applicants that have allowed their licence to lapse and seek re-application. This fee is an addition to any other applicable fee.	\$150
Documentation	This fee applies to a request for documentation/verification from a previous registrant of the SDHA or may be applied to an out of the ordinary request made by a current registrant.	\$25

Payment can be made by credit card directly to the invoice generated in the member portal or by cheque payable to the Saskatchewan Dental Hygienists' Association. Any NSF charges will be the responsibility of the applicant/registrant. Third-party fees may occur during the Registration & Licensing Process.